ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 1, 2013
7:59 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 84
"An Act relating to the Al aska Challenge Youth Acadeny; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BILL NO. 6
"An Act providing for funding for school Iunch and breakfast;
and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 84
SHORT TITLE: M LI TARY YOUTH ACADEMY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

03/ 21/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 13 (S) EDC, FIN

04/ 01/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 6

SHORT TITLE: FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSK

01/16/13 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13
01/16/13 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2013



01/ 16/ 13 (S) EDC, FIN
04/ 01/ 13 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 84.

LI NDSAY W LLI AMS, St af f

Senat or Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed the fiscal inpact of SB 84.

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information about the fiscal notes
for SB 84.

CLYDE T. BURTON, Director

Al aska Mlitary Youth Acadeny

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for SB 84.

MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS H. KATKUS, Conmi ssioner

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for SB 84.

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 6.

KENDRA KLOSTER, Staff

Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 6 on behal f of the sponsor.

ADRI ANNE SCHWARTZ, Food Service Supervisor

Juneau School District
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2013



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for SB 6.

DAVI D NEES, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to SB 6.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

7:59: 52 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 7:59 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Gardner, Stednman, Huggins, Dunleavy, and
Chair Stevens.

SB 84-M LI TARY YOUTH ACADEMY

8: 00: 03 AM
CHAI R STEVENS announced that the first order of business would
be SB 84.

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, sponsor of SB 84, related that the bill
does three things: it anmends the state statute to change the
funding mechanism for the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny (AMYA),
it establishes the program in the Departnent of Mlitary and
Veterans Affairs (DWA), and it updates the program nanme from
Al aska Challenge Youth Acadeny to the Alaska Mlitary Youth
Acadeny.

She explained the reason she was carrying the bill. She rel ated
how i npressed she was with AMYA when she first encountered it.
She said the program consists of kids who otherw se would "fal
through the cracks.” She shared a personal story about John
Lopetrone, the carpentry teacher at AWA. She stressed that the
Acadeny makes a trenendous difference in kids' lives. She noted
that the Acadeny has rigorous standards, which is what the kids
need.

8:02:16 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL explained that the Acadeny targets students
between 16 and 18 that have dropped out of high school. It is a
22-week residential school program It has graduated over 4,000
cadets. She noted that out of 27 states with sim/lar prograns,
Al aska's programis ranked in the top five.

8:03: 03 AM

LI NDSAY WLLI AMS, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel, explained that
currently wunder AS 14.37.40, about one-third of the program

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2013



funding conmes from a space/student calculation. The forrmula is
equal to the Base Student Allocation (BSA), multiplied by 7 for
each residential student, added to the BSA, nultiplied by .6 for
each non-residential student, and then any anount received by
the program and by federal matching grants is subtracted. The
formula was created in 2002 to protect a young and fledging
program Over the past decade the Acadeny has grown and proven
to be very successful. It is tinme to nove the program funding to
a direct appropriation so that the Acadeny can budget and focus
on results and graduation rates.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY joined the commttee neeting.

M5. WLLIAVS pointed out that the Acadeny has been operating
since 1993. It was never formally established in statute under
the direction of DWA. This bill helps to correct this
over si ght.

She explained that in 1999, Senator Stevens, along wth the
| egi sl ature, encouraged changing the name of the program to the
Al aska Mlitary Youth Acadeny.

8: 04: 34 AM
CHAI R STEVENS asked for an explanation of the funding nmechani sm
and the inpact of the fiscal note on the budget in the future.

M5. WLLIAMS replied that the bill repeals the current BSA
cal cul ation and changes it to a direct appropriation from DWA.

CHAI R STEVENS asked how many students receive a CGED versus a
high school diploma and how many enter the mlitary after
gr aduat i on.

SENATOR G ESSEL deferred to the Acadeny's staff to answer.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about Section 2 of the bill, which nakes
the Acadeny a part of +the National Guard Youth Challenge
program

M5. WLLIAVS explained that it is sinply a formality. By
repealing the BSA, the reference to the Acadeny is renoved,
therefore, it needs to be formally established under DWA.

CHAIR STEVENS noted the letter previously referenced has not

been sent to the commttee. He requested the spelling of the
person who sent the letter.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2013



SENATOR G ESSEL said it was John Lopetrone.

8.07:15 AM

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Comnmi ssi oner, Al aska Departnment  of
Mlitary & Veterans Affairs (DWA), noted there were two fisca

notes; one from DWA and one from the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent. He addressed the fiscal note from DWA

which he said is a "zero change" and is a formality. The current
operating budget is the vehicle that will fund the program The
effective date of the bill is for next fiscal year, which neans
there will be a direct appropriation from DWA at that tine.

There is a total of $9.5 mllion operating dollars in FY 14,

which includes $1.5 million in access authority. The Acadeny
will not come from the Departnment of Education, but rather from
a National Guard programin DWA

CHAI R STEVENS asked how that will inpact the state.

MR. PIERRE said there is no fiscal inpact to the state. The goal
is to focus on graduating students.

8:09: 33 AM

SENATOR GARDNER asked about any expected changes to the funding
of the matching grant program from the Departnent of Defense.
She requested nore information about not using the BSA with an
Cct ober student count.

MR. Pl ERRE addressed the first question by saying that DWA has
been given commtnents from the National Guard Bureau that the
funding will remain the sane. In answer to the second question
he explained that DWA's funding formula is a multiplier of the
BSA which was needed in 2002 when the BSA was $3,000 per
student. The needs of the program have changed and that funding
does not fit. He said he does not have the expertise to say if
it is relevant to a K-12 school .

8:11: 03 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS recalled the denographics of the Acadeny and
termed it "a school of choice.”

MR. PIERRE deferred to M. Burton to answer.
SENATOR HUGGE NS noted the first line of the Acadeny letter and
corrected that 30 percent of high school freshnen fail to

graduate. He asked if the Acadeny is open to all students in
Al aska, who nmust apply to be accepted.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2013



MR. Pl ERRE sai d yes.

8:.12:35 AM
MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS H. KATKUS, Conmi ssioner, Al aska Departnent
of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs, introduced hinself.

CLYDE T. BURTON, Director, Alaska MIlitary and Youth Acadeny,
Al aska Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs, introduced
hi msel f.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS provided an overview of how the Acadeny
evolved. He explained that the need for a youth acadeny was
first identified 20 years ago and was put under the National
Guard and the Departnent of Defense (DOD) in order to help
prevent the high national dropout rate. The program was to
target high risk youth and was designed to use a mlitary
approach on discipline, organization, and instilling values. It
was not for the purposes of recruitnent.

He noted the program has been very successful. He said he could
not predict DODs future funding in light of today's econony.
The State of Alaska has provided the majority of the funding
rat her than the federal governnent.

He explained that SB 84 would facilitate a needed change to the
funding forrmula. The goal is to get nore students to graduate
not to get nore students in the program at the beginning. A
direct appropriation provides the conm ssion the opportunity to
identify the Acadeny's needs each year and make a funding
request .

8:15: 04 AM

MR. BURTON agreed with Myjor General Katkus's statenents. He
called the Acadeny a custoner-service-oriented and results-based
organi zation. In the past, with 330 students, there was |ess
than a 50 percent success rate. The current class had the
hi ghest retention rate so far.

He agreed that the current funding forrmula creates a ceiling and
limts efficiency.

CHAIR STEVENS noted the Governor's goals to increase the
graduation rate and to enhance digital |earning. He inquired how
the mlitary deals with a GED or diploma when accepting new
recruits. He also wanted to know the nunber of graduates who
earn their GED, versus a diplom.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2013



MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS replied that the Acadeny provides dropouts
the ability to get the remaining credits necessary to graduate
or a CGED, both of which are acceptable for entry into the
mlitary.

8.17.:36 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS noted that students with a GED can go back to
school to earn a diploma. He characterized the program as
allowing those who are close to graduating to get a diplom and
those who are not to go back to their school to earn the credits
needed to graduate.

MAJOR CENERAL KATKUS said that is correct. The Acadeny also
provi des students the opportunity to experience mlitary culture
or worKk.

MR. BURTON pointed out that the program is voluntary. The
student nust volunteer for the program which increases
retention. Half of the class is nade up of sixteen-year-olds,
which is a great advantage toward getting the students back on
track in order to graduate from their high school. The nunber of
hi gh school diplomas the Acadeny awards is snall

8:20: 17 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked how nmany staff are at the Acadeny.

MR. BURTON replied that there are 75 staff and some unfilled
positions.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY i nquired how many are teachers.

MR. BURTON sai d eight are teachers.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if they are certified teachers.

MR. BURTON said they are not certifi ed.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if there is a chaplain at the Acadeny.

MR. BURTON said there are voluntary church services every Sunday

and guest chapl ains | ead them

SENATOR STEDMAN asked about the advantages and di sadvantages of
certified versus non-certified teachers.

MR. BURTON replied that the Acadeny has extrenely good teachers.

He did not see an advantage of certification in the Acadeny's
program He noted the reading/witing teacher is certified. He

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2013



stressed the holistic approach of the Acadeny's curriculum wth
a focus on academics, as well as life skills, job skills, and
fitness.

8:22:29 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if M. Burton had considered expanding
the Acadeny to being a full-fledged mlitary acadeny.

MR. BURTON said he personally thinks that is a good idea;
however, the Acadeny 1is constrained from doing so by the
cooperative agreenent it operates under. The Acadeny is only
al l oned to take dropouts.

He noted the Acadeny has a great teamng relationship with the
Department of Education and with school districts and does not
wi sh to take away from public school prograns.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS further explained that the cooperative
agreenent consists of rules and regulations from the National
Guard Bureau, the national program

8:24:13 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked M. Burton to verify if an Acadeny
graduate went on to the Naval Acadeny.

MR. BURTON said that was correct.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what a graduation from the Acadeny is
like.

MR. BURTON replied that the nobst recent graduation was very
enotional and patriotic. There were 144 graduates.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS descri bed the growh of confidence shown in
graduates by their firm handshakes.

MR. BURTON pointed out that the graduates are sincerely grateful
for their Acadeny experience.

He noted that the standards of the Acadeny are very high.

8:.27.12 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS opined that it does not matter if the graduates
have the diploma or the GED, the program provides hope and the
ability to nove forward when many had given up. He asked for an
expl anation of how the Acadeny denonstrates when a student has
chal | enges.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2013



MR. BURTON said Senator Huggins is referring to the Hard Core
Program i nvol vi ng consequences for behavi or.

8:30: 00 AM
CHAI R STEVENS noted his appreciation for mlitary training and
t he Acadeny.

CHAI R STEVENS announced that SB 84 would be held in comm ttee.

8:30:40 AM
At ease
SB 6- FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS
8:32:17 AM
CHAIR STEVENS called the neeting back to order. He announced
that the final bill before the commttee would be SB 6.

SENATOR BILL W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 6, said the bill would
provide a state match for schools participating in the federa
free and reduced-price school breakfast and |unch program The
state match would be 35 cents for each breakfast and 15 cents
for each lunch. Alaska is one of the few states in the country
that does not have a state contribution which causes a gap of
about $2.1 mllion for schools to fund out of their general
funds. He noted that studies strongly show that kids that
receive neals at school tend to be |ess obese, have better
attendance records, and do better academ cally. The state spends
over $1 billion for education every year. |If students are hungry
and cannot pay attention, that noney is not being used as well
as it could be.

He noted that the bill has passed the Senate tw ce before.

8:34: 03 AM

KENDRA KLOSTER, Staff, Senator Bill Welechowski, introduced SB
6. She explained the three goals of SB 6 as follows: to increase
the nunmber of meals served, increase the nunber of students
receiving nmeals, and providing nore nutritious neals.

She shared statistics related to kids in need. One out of eight
Al aska famlies struggles to put enough food on the table each
year. She said 74,000 famlies seek food assistance and 43
percent of households visiting food pantries have children under
the age of 18. She related that 51,000 Al askan children are
eligible for free or reduced ||unch, however, six schoo

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2013



districts do not offer either breakfast or |unch and 20 percent
of the schools are not offering breakfast. Alaska is in the
bottom 10 percent of the state for participation in food
progr amns.

She discussed statistics related to schools in need. It costs
rural schools nore to provide food prograns.

8:36: 02 AM

M5. KLOSTER listed the reasons to have food prograns in schools.
They provide a solid investnment in children's futures. They
pronote better health, and behavior and performance in school
They |ower the dropout rates, prison populations, and obesity,
and provi des higher incones.

She cited a nunber of studies that show positive effects of the
school neal program

8:38:31 AM

M5. KLOSTER addressed the state supplenent to federal funding
She said the nore the program increases, the nore federal
dollars are available to the state. She referred to letters of
support for the program

She summarized that SB 6 is a solid investnent in children's
futures.

CHAI R STEVENS asked to Ms. Kloster to clarify if SB 6 increases
the nunber of children who would receive the breakfast/|unch
programor if is sinmply replaces funding from one source.

M5. KLOSTER replied that funds were being taken out of schools’
operating budgets and SB 6 provides funding from a different
source. It will not cover the entire recent shortfall, but wll
hel p. She reported that sonme of the schools plan to use the
funding to increase the nutrition of the nmeals. One of the goals
is to add nore students and receive nore federal funding.

8:40:41 AM

SENATOR GARDNER asked about the cost of the state's suppl enental
funding nentioned on page 27. She wondered why the breakfast
cost nore than the |unch

M5. KLOSTER deferred to Ms. Schwartz to answer.

ADRI ANNE  SCHWARTZ, Food Service Supervisor, Juneau Schoo
District, testified in support of SB 6. She explained that there

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2013



is a very low nunber of students participating in the breakfast
program so nore funding would increase the nunbers. The
rei mobursenent rate for the breakfast is a lot |ower than that
for the lunch program The supplenental funding would also
provide for a higher quality breakfast.

8:42:18 AM

SENATOR GARDNER noted a concern about ensuring enough time for
the breakfast so that children would not be late for class. She
asked if the program currently provides food that the children
can eat in the classroom

M5. SCHWARTZ said yes. Typically, the breakfast consists of
sonething fast. Half of the schools participate in the Nationa
School Breakfast Program and half wuse a volunteer donation
program The latter is having a higher success because it is
offered for no cost for everyone. She opined that the funding
found in SB 6 is vital in order to offer students a full,
conpl et e breakfast.

8:44: 00 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if sone districts require students to pay
for a portion of the cost of breakfast.

M5. SCHWARTZ replied that half of the schools participate in the
Nat i onal Program where students pay full price - $1.75 - for the
breakfast. Sonme students are eligible for a reduced-price
breakfast for $.30 and sone qualify for the free breakfast.

CHAI R STEVENS asked for a rough idea of how many receive free
reduced, or full-fare neals.

M5. SCHWARTZ replied that Juneau is serving 1,300 neals per day
for free, reduced, and full-fare neals. Half of the students are
eligible for free or reduced-price neals.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked how many Title | schools are in the Juneau
School District.

MS. SCHWARTZ said she did not know.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the qualifying percentage for Title |
is.

M5. SCHWARTZ said it is in the 40 percent to 50 percent range.
Two elenentary schools have higher than 40 percent of their
students eligible for free and reduced-price neals. One of the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2013



hi gh schools has 60 percent eligible. District-wi de, 30 percent
of students are eligible.

8:46: 57 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS di scussed food quality in schools as it relates
to obesity.

M5. SCHWARTZ responded that food requirenents are changing and
now require healthier fare.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the federal government is a reliable
partner in light of the national debt.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he does not know if sequestration wll
impact SB 6. He noted the bill was originally passed by Congress
in 1946 as a neasure of national security because too many nen
were unfit for mlitary service due to malnutrition. He said he
woul d be surprised if there were cutbacks in this area. He added
that it is a bi-partisan issue.

8:49: 48 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked a question about the cost of the program

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI reiterated that it costs 35 cents for
breakfast and 15 cents for lunch per student. That is the base
anount and it is tied to the funding fornula so rural Al aska
schools would receive a greater anmount to conpensate for the
much hi gher costs.

He related that the Anchorage School District would use this
funding to expand the neal program and to increase the quality
of the food. Schools would have the option as to how to spend
t he noney.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY he asked how much the fiscal note is.

8:51:21 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI replied that the fiscal note is for $2.3
mllion per year.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if sone schools were using other funding
sources for the neals program so that SB 6 would free up those
funds to be used in other ways.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said that was correct and noted the fisca
gap of $7.8 million to $9 mllion.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2013



8:52:26 AM

DAVI D NEES, representing hinself, testified in opposition to SB
6. He questioned how rei nbursenents would take place. He pointed
out in the Anchorage School District 22,000 of 50,000 children
are eligible because USDA standards for the poverty level are
used. He did not believe the fiscal note would cover those
costs. He suggested that the allocation for the funding needs to
cone out of the noney allotted to famlies to feed their
chi | dren.

8:54: 59 AM
CHAI R STEVENS requested clarification of M. Nees' question.

MR. NEES asked if the schools that receive the funding get
rei nbursed for the children served or for those who are eligible
for the program He also wondered how much waste there was. He
questioned the use of USDA standards.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI replied that the way the legislation is
witten is to supplement the cost of Jlunch and Dbreakfast
provided to each student who is eligible for a free or reduced-
price lunch. The state produces the fiscal note.

M5. KLOSTER explained that for every neal that is served, the
cost is reinbursed.

CHAI R STEVENS sunmarized that it is based on the nunber served.
MS. KLOSTER agr eed.

CHAI R STEVENS i nqui red about the issue of wasted food.

M5. KLOSTER deferred the question to Ms. Schwart z.

CHAI R STEVENS requested comments about USDA fundi ng.

SENATOR GARDNER restated the question to ask why the program
uses USDA levels for eligibility that are cut off at the $50, 000
i ncone | evel.

MS. KLOSTER di d not know.

8:58:49 AM
CHAI R STEVENS held SB 6 in comittee.

8:59: 05 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2013



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Stevens adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmmttee
hearing at 8:58 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2013



